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OCTOBuR IMEETING:  Regular monthly business meeting will be held on Sunday
October 12, 1975 at 2:00 p.m. in the lounge of the Missouri Pacific Offlce
Building, 1006 west 4th Streut North thtle Hocks i ;
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SUPTANBLR MEETING: The September neetln[ was the regular annual swap meet.
fuite a bit of trading took place prior to the meeting. As a program, Jack
See showed a slide presentation that he has prepared for showing to other
grouns depicting our rmuseum operation. Stan Wozencraft reported on the

proposed fan trip in South Arkansas (see related iter). Naomi Hull
reported on the seccess of her lMuseun Sales Cormiittee ane advised that
additional patches and jewelry items had been ordered.

FAN TRIP: Stan Wozencraft, Chairman of t e Fan Trip Comrittee repBris
that he has been successful in making the arrangements for a trip over
The Ashley, Drew & llorthern Railway. Through the good offices of lMr, L,

Austin Temple, President and Mr. Phillip H. Schueth, General Manager
the trip will be run as a contribution to the club.

The train will depart Crossett, Arkansas at 10:00 a.n. on Sunday, October
26th and run to lonticello, Arkansas and return. The duration of the trip
will be approxiiately 5 hours. Space is limited by the capacity of the car
to aporoxinately 60 passengers. Advance reservations will be necessary.

A reservation fee of $3.00 for adult members, {$4.00 for adult non-menbers
and %1.00 fior children will be charged., It will also be necessary to sigh
waivers at the time of boarding. IHeservations are on a first come basis
and may be made with Chairian Wozeneraft. More details will be provided at
the October meeting.

It will be adviseable to bring a box lunch, Provisions will be made to
nake soft drinks availab.e.
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APYATTSASS "COLDEN SPIKE" CEREMNCIY
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CLIFTON T, HULL

I'rom the time fo the completion of the first railroad to join the east
ard wegt coasts of the United States on llay 10, 1869, at Promontory, Utah,
1t has been customary to celebrate the comnletion of a railrcad by holding
5 spike-driving ceremony. The spike was referred to as "Golden' wheteer the
precious metal was present or not.

Railroad construction in Arkansas had generally been comnleted for
nmany years when the last such ceremony was conducted early in 1957. This
occasion was not the completion of a great rail line. It was the deliberate
extension of two rail systems and a phusical connection between the two,

A sort of "ilarriage of the rails".

Several facets of this incident were different and mgy be of iterest.
The occasion was tlie joining of a 45 rmile nrosnerous short line with
an 11,000 mile ealthy giant in the world of railroads. A prosverous
shortline railroad is rather unmsual, even thoush we do have four or five
in Arkansas.

Two spikes were used in the ceremonv and both were actually gold-
plated, so the "Golden Snike" no enclature was very annroptiate and
authentic.,

The even occurred in the dense pine forest of Southwest iriansa ,
but it was dlestined to receive nationwide coverage by the nress wire
services and Business lleek , a national business publication.

It was a cold and cloudy morning of January 19, 1957, when the
chilled steel rails of the Defueen & _‘astern Railroad were united to the
equally cold ones of the lMissouri Pacific. The cold dammness itm the
small opening of the forest produced feathery condensed breath plunes
from the 300 wpceftators,

The little DeCueen & L_stern had lai its rails 26 niles eastward
from the towm of De Queen to a point in the vir;yin pine forest of Howard
County in 1905 where the town of Dierks was built. The Arkansas & Louisiana
tailway corpleted its road from Hope to Mashville in 18£4. The St., Louis,
Iron liountain & Southern bought the A&L and assuned complete control in
1910, The Iron llountain was absorbed by the I ssouri Pacific in 1917,
Thus in 1917 about 20 miles of forest senarated the llissouri Pacific at
Mashville, and the De(lueen & Eastern at Dierks.
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The DC&LL was begun in Sentember, 1900 by Hans Dierks to supply his
sawiiill at DeCueen with a steddy stream of logs. The rails extended
from his many logging camps in the forest to the big 1ill and on to a
connection wi h the Kansas City Southern. At successive timrmini in
the woods, srnall towns were begun to serve the many loggers and their
fanilies. The towns of Lockesburg and Dierks were products of the railread,
The latter was well est_l'lished by 1905.

The lumber business of Hans Dierks an his three brothers, lHenry,
{erman and Peter prospered. liany hundreds of thousan s of acres of forest
lands were purchased in southeastern Indian Territor;r, now Oklahoma, and
a new railroad was builtto serve the new rikls in the area, The Texas,
Okalhoma & ..astern. The two lumber roadswere joined at West Line Arkansas,
January 5, 1921 on the Arkarsas-Oklahoma Border,

The large iidll at Delueen fell victim to the dreaded specter of
all tinberien--fire. So, a new one was built at Dierks in 191#, This
nill, with the tow larpge ones in Oklahoma put the cormany on the road to
an expanding success. A bout 90 percent of the railroad traffic was
originated at the los ing camns and mills, but other shipners in the area
availed themselves of its services. Passeng:rs and rail were a itinor
segnient of the traffic until disco-tinued in 1948. A new lumber treating
and preserving nlant was built in 1948 about two miles west of DeQueen.
lere a new town was born,,Process City. This plant almost doubled the
anount of business on the DeQueen & Lastern,

uabitious plans of the Dierks Forests, Inc., becane a reality in
1957. “ hugh $15 1million kraft paper mill was built near the Arkansas River
at Pine Blufif o~ 1,480 acres. Great quantities of water were required,
and this was the most suitable site. A preat disadvantapge was the fact
thet there was no ready access to the mill with trainloads of nulp wood
and wood chins from the lumber mills., Fredght interchange was required
{ron the DG&E to the Kansas City Southern from DHCueen to Texariana
then another esichanpge to the llissouri Pacific whieh served the mill at
PPne Bluff. A ore direct connection was needed betweenthe DGfI and the
loPac. A study of a railroad man revealed that only about ten niles of
Borest land separated the two reads. Ifforts to solve this nroblem were
berun in October 1955 when the two reads filed an apnlication with the
Interstate Cormmerce Commission for permission to join the roads. The
Commissio~ granted the request on February 27, 1956, with the provision
that construction begin by April 5, 1956 and be commleted by February
15, 1957. '

This would be the first major railroad construction by the MoPac
since 1913, when the cut-off was built between larianna and Briark, opnosite
Memphis, Also it was jiist 100 years since construction had begun on
the first qperating railroad in Arkansas-~the Little Rock & Ilemphis.
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In the dense pine forest of Howard County major railroad building.
was bepun. lloPac crews of '"gandy dancers" (track men) comienced work
at Nashville, and headed northwest, while the crews of the DeQueen &
Eastern proceeded southeastward. This was a noteworthy event because in
the realm of railroad building many rmore miles of railroad had been
torn up than built during the preceeding years, This indeed was a reversaal
of the nationwide trend.

The Missouri Pacific would spend more than twice as rmch money
as the DG&E to build the same length of track, The Dier''s company already
owned the land across which they were laying rails. It was necessary
for the 1i p to purchase land from the City of Nashville, E. H. Harthum.
R. L, llusgrove, J. A, Sullivan, A. L. Staggs, Ruth Brewer, 1, L. Brown,
Opal Stuart, llary Roberson andDierks Forests,

The lioP received bids from ten companies for the job of grading
up the roadbed, The contract was given to the lcGeorge Company of Pine
Bluff on lay 14, 1956. The route had been surveyed and located by loP

enrineers George Sowers, Bikll Dyer and Harry Cowan. iarlier the
clearing of the route was completed to fulifill the ICE Requirement that
work should begin by April 15.

As the roadbed was prepared, crews placed crossties and spiked down
riblons of steel rails., Crews of both roads slowly made their way to-
ward each other throurh the forest,

Finally the notice was given that a public ceremony would be held
on January 19, 1957, a Saturday. This was an aproropriate day, because
the local pcople would be free from work and could attend. The event was
used to achieve the greatest publicity possible for the respective
railroads.

Special trains were run on the llissouri Pacific from MNashville, and
on the DeQueen & Bistern from Dierks. They met at a point 9,6 miles from
Nashville. An interchange track had been constructed on either side of
the main track each of which could hold 25 freight cars,

Yhere were about 300 spectators who had braved the cold dampness
to witness the unusual occassion. Two diesel locomotives stood facing
each other a short distance apart. Between them was a specially built
gasoline-powered spike driving machine which had cost (52,000 and could
drive 800 spikes an hour, It syibolized the progress railroading had
made since that historic day the final spike was driven by man-powered
mauls at Promontory, Utah oh lay 10, 1269,
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The honor of handling this machine was given to Paul J. Veff,
President of the llissouri Pacific and Fred H. Dierks, President of the
DeCueen & Lastern. As the crowd waited, the two gold plated spikes
were placed in position, the machine was rolled in place, the two rail
presidents pressed levers and with a sharp, staccato beat the spikes
wore diriven horme |

Tmrediately the spikes were carefully pulled from the crosstie and were
given to lr. Weff and lir. Dierks., as romentoes of the event. Meff who hdd
begun his railroad career as a rodman on a survey crew said, "spike driving
wasn't that easy when I was doing it for a livingl"®

Beside the compmleted track a shgn was erected on a metal standard
set in a foundation of rocks shaped like a cairn, or monument. The sipn
noted the place was henceforth to be knowm as PERKIIIS, This was in honor
of a venerable gentleman of 86 years, Charles ii. Perkins.who came to the
M ssouri Pacific from the Kansas City Southern in 1908 and retired in

1941 as chief traffic off'icer,

The diesel locomotive of the DO&E now brings a train of pulpwood
and chips, pulls it into one of the interchange t acks at Perkins and
leaves it there, A MoP diesel couples o1, to it and wheels it away about
170 miles to the Dierks paper mill at Pino Bluff,

Perkins was only a spot in the forest makked with a shgn. The towm
of Dierks, with a population of nearly 1,300, was only a clear:d place
in the forest whenthe rails came. Perhaps one day there will be a simila r
town at Perkins.

Even if it remaihs only a sigh on a metal standard, it knew a mo-
nent of importance which has remained an event of historical sipgnificance
for Arkansas.

END

T AYTe Ambrak!s Chicapo-Houston train, the LOE STAR, is now rumning

to Dallas. At Fort llorth, The LONL STAR will split into two sections, with
one going to Houston and t e other to Dallas., The southbound run from
Chicago to Dallas will take 20 hours and 20 minutes, while the northbound
run will be about two hours longer, counting time waiting to make the
connection at Fort Worth.
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A late change brought about the larpge deletion in the meeting notice on the
front page of this issue. The program will be a film festival. If you have
any film or slides that need to be seen by the mehbership, bring them along.

CHRISTIIAS PARTY: Ruby Holt's Christmas Party Committee met recently and
Tace preliminary plans for that event. I hear that things are progressing
aqicely and we can expect quite a party this year. Plan to attend. lle
rhould hear a committee report at the October meeting.

"ROLI THE PaST: June 15; 22, 29, 1900 The Chicago city council has finally
aranted the Chicago & hllwaukee & St. Paul the privdlege of changing the notive
power onits 1l2-mile suburban line between Chicago and Evanston from steam to
leectbricity. on condition of payment to the city at the rate of 3500 per mile

per year. Inasinuch as the company already pessessed the right to onerate the road
by sbteam and as the change to electricity will be preatly to the benefit of

the public, it is not clear why a fine shoud be placed on the improvement.

The oroposed change has been held up in the council for some years, but popular
eemand for it was so strong that the aldermen finally asxented by a vote of

54=6.4

(July 13, 190@) A new tourist sleeping car service is to be established on
September 1, from Chicago to the Pacific Coast, over the Illinois Central
Railroad, to Omaha, the Chicago Rock Island & Pacific to Denver, the Denver
& Qtio Grande and Rio Grande Western to Ogden, and the Southern Pacific to
San ['rancisco, or the Oregon Short Line to the Nerthwest.

Arkansas Railroad Club is a non profit organization that meets the second
Sunday of each rionth in the llissouri Pacific Office Building, 1000 'lest

Lth Street, North Little fock., Arkansas/ For informa tion write P. 0. Box
5584 Litt e Rock, Ark. 72205
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